
RYE TOWN PARK COMMISSION MEETING 

Meeting Date/Time/Place: Feb 4, 2009 @ 6:30pm at Town of Rye, 10 Pearl St. Port Chester 

Present: Carvin, McKean, Pilla, Feinstein, Otis and Salanitro, Nowotnik, Noto 

Pledge led by Feinstein 

Carvin: Approval of 10/22/08 minutes as amended by Joan Feinstein:  

Motion-Salanitro / Second-Feinstein 

Ayes:    Carvin, McKean, Pilla Feinstein, Otis and Salanitro 

Nays:    None 

 

Carvin: Approval of 12/18/08:  

Motion-Pilla / Second Feinstein 

Ayes:    Carvin, McKean, Pilla, Feinstein, Otis and Salanitro 

Nays:    None 

 

Carvin/Nowotnik: Approval of 2008 Financial Report 

Report is unaudited and still subject to adjustment. There is an ongoing discussion with auditors regarding this 

Unemployment Insurance line item.  A large portion of this $34,337.06 Unemployment expense is based on 2007 

work and should be reflected in 2007 financials.  McKean wanted confirmation this was indeed a 2007 expense. 

Nowotnik indicated the Auditors are still reviewing this and 2007 numbers would be finalized after the 

Unemployment adjustment was settled. 

 

Otis asked for detailed analysis of November & December 2008 Grounds crew and Security payroll details.  He 

wants hours & dollars for each.  Nowotnik will provide them.  McKean asked about Workers Comp & Medical 

benefits postings. Nowotnik indicated these numbers result from an allocation of the full time Town of Rye 

employees; Rye Town Park seasonal employees do not get benefits. 

 

Pilla asked when the 2007 Audit would be completed. Carvin answered that with the new Administration, we 

brought in new Auditors, and preparing for this first Audit was difficult as no one had direct knowledge of 2007 

activity. Carvin indicated the 2007 Audit would be completed for the next meeting. He said the 2008 Audit would 

be completed by end of May. 

 

Carvin then indicated 2009 proposed budget discussion was to be delayed at request of Steve Otis. The City of 

Rye wants more time to review the 2009 proposed budget as the current projected deficit shows higher than 

anticipated. Otis indicated he felt that fall staffing in 2008 seemed excessive and could be reduced for 2009. Otis 

also questioned the proposed reduction in Unemployment Insurance expense and the accompanying explanation 

of Self Insurance - Reduced Liability due to improved scheduling . 

 

Nowotnik explained that Rye Town is self insured as to Unemployment insurance due to the large number of 

seasonal employees and we are projecting to lower Unemployment liability through better scheduling of those 

employees. Otis asked what was spent in prior years. Nowotnik will provide spread sheet of prior years 

Unemployment liabilities. He went on to explain the learning curve in 2008 and how he and Fred Gioffre would 

manage the seasonal pool for 2009. 

 

McKean asked about the inconsistency of interest, none shown in 2008, and $6000.00 shown in 2009.  

Nowotnik will get clarification from accountant. 2008 Interest may be adjusted during Audit. McKean also asked 

why Concerts increased from $1675.00 in 2007 to $5200.00 in 2008, than to $8000.00 projected for 2009 and 

questioned if we should be increasing Concerts in light of the poor economy. 



Carvin commented that people seemed to like the Concerts. Otis mentioned that in the past the major cost was 

the rental of the Band stage from Westchester County. He felt that without the Band stage, costs of Concerts 

should be minimal. 

 

Bill Lawyer and David Rassmussen indicated that the performing groups needed to be paid as well as the Town 

also provided a sound system. Rassmussen indicated the FORTP would be interested in co-sponsoring a similar 

number of concerts in 2009.  Carvin indicated that he felt performances were at a very high Professional level. 

Nowotnik clarified that the 2009 proposed budget was based on a $750.00 performance Fee and $250.00 Sound 

Fee, however, this could vary by group.  Salanitro asked whether parking revenues contributed to offset their 

expenses. Nowotnik indicated No  as the concerts were scheduled for Tuesday evenings, after 6pm when 

parking was free. McKean asked if we incurred added staff costs due to concerts. Again, Nowotnik indicated No  

as staff scheduling was already pre-planned to support the series. McKean felt the concert series should be 

controlled by FORTP and the number of performances should remain same as 2008. Carvin commented that 

perhaps additional groups could be accommodated and Park management could better coordinate with FORTP. 

Lawyer, McKean and Rassmussen shared the opinion that concert attendance typically fell off during August as 

many families went away on Vacation. 

 

Salanitro commented about the lack of Trash removal expense in 2008. Nowotnik answered that Village of Port 

Chester is to bill us for this service and had not billed yet. Salanitro asked why Rye would not pick it up. Otis 

mentioned that Rye City does not have the right type of equipment. Pilla asked about Seaside Johnnies trash. 

Nowotnik confirmed that Port Chester picked up everything and Seaside pays Rye Town Park $3000.00 annually 

for the service, as per their lease. 

 

Otis then brought up the issue of reviewing the fee schedule as it relates to 2009 budget. Carvin felt that current 

Deficit might dictate some changes. McKean interjected that he was more comfortable calling the shortfall a 

subsidy rather than deficit.  He indicated the average cost to Rye City residents for the Park was only $4.00 per 

person per year. 

 

Carvin mentioned that increasing non-resident; non-permit fees could potentially reduce the subsidy. Feinstein 

indicated this year might be a good period to pull in more Town’s people. McKean mentioned again that rates 

were increased in 2008 and the current subsidy cost was reasonable in light of the Off-Season enjoyment people 

get from the Park. 

 

Otis agreed and suggested Commission members review the 2008 fee schedules and the revenue by category 

summary prior to the next meeting. Carvin mentioned he still felt that there should be a larger differential 

between resident and Non-resident costs, McKean agreed. 

 

Lawyer suggested expanding the definition Non-resident permits to include a broader area of the County. Otis 

was concerned this could lead to unintended revenue loss as those people who are paying full price now, and still 

coming, might spend less with a permit and come to the beach more. 

 

Otis commented that Playland was reducing their parking fees and he felt RTP should keep our parking fee higher 

than Playland as a policy. 

 

Feinstein asked about Cash Summary Report for prior years and asked about free beach references on report. 

Nowotnik will look into more specific detail. 

 

Lawyer suggested shorter terms for Pavilion parties and perhaps an hourly rate to allow for more turnovers. 

 



Carvin highlighted the disparity of the Cash Summary Report and the cash receipts reported and presented the 

RFP for a new cashiering system. Nowotnik indicated that 6 vendors have been identified and we have met with 4 

vendors already. 

 

Pilla suggested several additions to the RFP. Carvin suggested that service be a key consideration. Pilla also 

suggested breaking out fixed & variable costs. 

 

Carvin then asked Lisa Easton to speak to the Bathhouse preservation project. She reviewed the current Grant 

situation.  The Save Americas Treasures Grant  for $200.000 will expire on June 10, 2009. We must begin 

drawing down funds by that date or file for the last extension till 2010. The Environmental Protection Fund Grant 

for $200.000 will also be subject to expiration. Both Grants were specifically targeted for the Roofs project. 

Otis suggested we go forward and have Lisa Easton complete construction documents for the Roof(s) 

replacement only. Lisa indicated that soft cost design expenses could be paid from Grant proceeds with grantor 

approval. Otis indicated that once the documents were completed the Rye City and Town of Rye boards would 

have to approve any going forward of Construction as the Town of Rye would have to Bond for it and Rye City 

would be obligated to pay 50%.  

 

Otis also indicated that Susan Auslander should file for extension of the Grants. Lisa indicated she felt the current 

poor economic situation could lead to more competitive bids. Otis, Feinstein and McKean concurred. 

Lisa Easton indicated completion of documents would take about 3 months and construction was estimated at 4-

5 months and could proceed through the winter.  

 

Tile was cited as having an 18 week supply cycle and would be pre-ordered once quantities were identified. 

Salanitro suggested that Town would pre buy Tile and use that expense to draw down Funds. Lisa indicated there 

was a mixture of Old & New tile. She said there were two types: The original was Ohio Tile w/true S gutter and 

the newer Ludovici with a Flat gutter.  McKean also suggested pre-order of Tile. All agreed. Salanitro suggested 

we salvage all of the Ludovici tiles for re-use on the bathroom buildings & order all new Tiles for Bathing 

Pavilions. 

 

Tarping of the roofs was discussed and Nowotnik indicated contractor suggested heavy duty UV resistant Tarps 

be used as they would be up for quite some time.  Tarps would be installed and they would remain up until 

October when beach closes.  Lisa concurred with Salanitro that tarps could help to preserve the wood roof base 

however she was concerned about collateral damage by installing tarps. Otis thanked Lisa Easton for all of her 

contributions to the Renovations project. He reviewed the Pavilion projects done in the past and expressed 

confidence in her expertise for the larger projects to come. 

 

Pilla asked if construction drawings and supervision was a fixed price. Lisa said Yes , McKean confirmed that 

engineering proposal was included as a bundled contract. 

 

Motion was made by McKean, Second by Salanitro  

Feinstein, Pilla, Otis, McKean, Salanitro and Carvin to authorize Lisa Easton to proceed and produce complete 

construction and engineering drawings for the replacement of the Tile Roofs of the Bathing Pavilion & Bathhouse. 

 

Carvin & Otis then discussed looking for potential User/Financial Partner to ultimately partner for the balance of 

the renovation. Carvin then suggested a broader outreach for Grants and other Funds raising options. Otis 

o e ted that perhaps “usa ’s servi es ould e ore targeted. 
 

Nowotnik reviewed request from the Greater New York Chapter of Cystic Fibrosis Foundation which was 

requesting use of Rye Town Park to walk thru on Sunday, May 17, 2009. Commission approved by consensus. 

 



Nowotnik presented sample Anti-Bird Netting to be installed at the Pavilions to prevent birds from fouling 

parties. Commission agreed. Cost was projected at less than $2000.00 for both Pavilions. Nowotnik also discussed 

adding lighting to the Pavilions. McKean suggested we preserve the integrity of the renovation. Bids range from 

$2000.00 to $4100.00 and would add 2 identical, matching the existing, fixtures to each Pavilion. Nowotnik also 

cited 6 bids received for painting the Pavilion rafters ranging from $4340.00 to $12,715.00. We project spending 

about $5000.00. McKean felt strongly that these actions were vital to maintain the Pavilions in good condition. 

 

Otis asked about Pillar repairs and paint removal. McKean suggested we wait until envelope repairs began as the 

contractor expertise would be available then. Otis, McKean, and Easton agreed that the improper paint should be 

removed as soon as possible from the Pavilion columns. 

 

Bill Lawyer suggested the 2009 proposed budget include money for shared services already agreed to with 

FORTP. These include items of tree and garden maintenance.  Carvin suggested a review of the 2009 budget with 

Lawyer, Gioffre & Nowotnik to fine tune the numbers.  Lawyer than brought up the Art in the Park  Contest to 

be held in May. This would be a juried art show. 

 

Salanitro complained about use of snow blowers on Forest Ave.  It was throwing ice chunks at cars passing by. He 

felt the employee was misusing the equipment.  Deleo took note and will review with the employee. 

 

Feinstein asked about future Commission meeting schedules. She indicated that the Third Tuesday schedule was 

best for her. Carvin mentioned 3rd Tuesday in February was a Holiday week and 3rd Tuesday in March was St. 

Patri k’s Day. Pilla suggested Thursday Mar h 19th as possible next meeting date. All agreed. Otis indicated a later 

start would be better for him as he was returning from Albany. Everyone agreed that from April forward, the 

Commission meetings would be scheduled for the 3rd Tuesday of each month @6:30pm. 

 

Motion to adjourn: Feinstein / 2nd McKean 

Ayes: McKean, Pilla, Otis, Feinstein, Salanitro and Carvin 

Nays: None 



RTP Commission Meeting 3-19-09 

6:40 Meeting called to order by Steve Otis, Carvin Late but in route 

Salanitro led Pledge of Allegiance  

Present: Salanitro, Otis, Pilla, Feinstein, Carvin arrived at 7:10 

Excused due to illness -               McKean 

   

Motion to approve minutes – 2/4/09: Salanitro, 2nd Feinstein – approved 4-0 

 

Receipt & acceptance 2007 Audit 

Feinstein comments: 

 P-11 -      FDIC limits exceeded by $57,000 

 P-14-B – Commission has not adopted investing policies required by NYS Law 

 P-16        Compensated absences – Collective bargaining for sick leave not paid upon separation of   

service. Vacation time taken in year earned.  There appears to be an inconsistency in 

application.   

Town Accountant, Sam Terenzi commented on exceeding the FDIC threshold that this resulted from a short term 

cash flow excess than normal during the season. Typically there is no money left in the RTP account at the end of 

the season. 

Nowotnik indicated that the footnote was in error as the Town did not have any collective bargaining 

agreement.  Unused vacation and sick time was paid to Rocco Bartlik upon his retirement.  This would not 

repeat as Mr. Bartlik was the last remaining full time employee at RTP. 

 

Mayor Otis indicated that a written request for information related to final quarter 2008 increased expenses 

would be submitted by the City of Rye finance office. 

 

Otis then moved to review the Point of Sale RFP status. Nowotnik presented the RFP results so far. Three 

complete bids were provided along with a summary comparison of the Financial Aspects. Nowotnik reviewed 

basic requirements for RFP. Eight (8) position were requested which would allow for 3 beach entrances, 1 permit 

office, 1 parking. We also wanted to add 1 middle beach position and 1 parking and have 1 spare system in 

reserve. All bids substantially exceeded budget. 

 

Bidders were then asked to scale bids down to 5 units, the absolute minimum number of units needed to run 

the Park.  Ea h Bidder’s approa h to the requirements varied substantially.  

Feinstein asked when we needed decisions to be made to be ready for season opening.   

Nowotnik indicated the implementation time lines ranged from 15 days to 24 days and we would need the 

system operational by May 10th.  This would indicate a decision needed by April 17th.                                                       

Salanitro questioned whether any bids meet the bid spec exactly. Nowotnik indicated No , but Small Business 

Systems came in the closest. IUG planned on reusing some of our existing equipment and ThorDog Tech, was 

not yet contacted for clarification and confirmation of their bid information gaps. 

 

Salanitro voiced concern that bid documents were highly detailed and felt that bids that were incomplete or 

non-compliant should be discarded. We should not be going back to bidders to shape up their bids responses. 

 

Carvin asked if these bid reviews were an attempt to reduce overall costs. Nowotnik indicated that all bids came 

in way over budget and scaling back to 5 POS Units could bring costs in line with our 2009 budget. 

 



Pilla volunteered to review RFP specs with Nowotnik. Carvin asked about possibilities including penalties for non 

performance or delay. 

 

Salanitro indicated discomfort with process and suggested that their changes require a complete re-bid. 

 

Pilla asked about a Plan B in the event we were not successful in implementing in time.  Nowotnik indicated 

existing Vendor has agreed to re-install our existing system at the same $6,600 start up fee as 2008. 

 

There was consensus agreement not to accept any Bids, to revise specifications and publish new Bid request. 

Pilla volunteered to assist. Salanitro would forward boiler plate. 

 

Carvin then brought up the draft of 2008 financials. 

Accountant Terenzi reviewed the draft 2008 financial report. The Commissioners raised several questions 

related to: U e plo e t i sura e, Refuse olle tio  fees, i terest e pe se a d Work a ’s Co pe satio  
Insurance.  Terenzi then explained the change in accounting method for Unemployment Insurance. Now it will 

be accrued to the year the benefit was earned. 

 

The final 2008 Audit report should be available for the April 21st meeting and the questioned items will be 

clarified and finalized in that report. 

 

Discussion then moved to Cash Summary Report and the 2009 Fee Schedule. Nowotnik presented a Permit Cost 

Analysis, comparing cost of permits by category to varying numbers of non-permit visits, in order to evaluate 

value break points . 

 

Carvin suggested permit costs remain the same for discussion purposes and also raised the possibility of 

expanding Non-Resident permits to all of Westchester which would produce a significant boost in cash flow and 

net revenue due to increased permit sales.  Feinstein agreed that opening up the permit process could offset 

any drop in renewals due to economic conditions. 

 

It was agreed to keep Non-permit parking rates at $7.00 for weekdays and $8.00 on weekends. 

 

Otis suggested permits be increased by small increments each year so as not to adversely impact the Public, yet 

continue to make progress toward a breakeven operation. 

 

Carvin agreed that a small $5.00 per permit was the correct approach and suggested that Non-resident permits 

be increased by $10.00 to improve the Resident/Non-Resident differential.  

 

Motion was made by Salanitro to increase 2009 permit fees by $5.00 for Residential permits and $10.00 for Non-

Residential permits, 2nd Feinstein 

Roll Call: Pilla, Feinstein, Otis, Salanitro, Carvin 

 

Otis then questioned the suggestion of opening permits to a wider non-resident area.  He was concerned that 

we could not assure a net revenue gain for the Park. Feinstein concurred.  She felt there might be too many 

variables in the plan to accurately predict the revenue generation. Feinstein commented: while it is easy for us 

to I.D. permit holders, it would be beneficial to I.D. Non-permit holders and How could we do it . 

 

Both Gioffre and Otis voiced concerns about slowing down the entrance process and causing safety issues on 

Dearborn. Otis suggested using E-Z Pass data. Pilla suggested moving the geographic I.D. process to the Beach 



entrances instead of the parking entrance. Terenzi suggested scanning Drivers Licenses. Otis was concerned that 

this violated privacy and could be unlawful. 

 

Pilla “uggested a eeti g to re ie  RTP’s data collection needs and incorporate those into RFP. 

 

Salanitro motioned to open Non-resident permits to all comers on a one year trial basis subjected to having the 

ability to track their activity.  2nd Feinstein 

Roll Call:  Pilla, Feinstein, Otis, Salanitro and Carvin 

 

Mrs. Lee Sanford then presented her request to run small Fitness Groups in RTP using grassy area;  Mondays, 

Wednesdays and Fridays, 2 classes each day, 9:15 -10:15 and 10:15 – 11:15 each class 8-10 people.  Activities 

will be Jogging, push-ups, sit-ups etc., minimal equipment to be used. Space needs are minimal as most activity 

is In Place .  She charges participants $15.00 per person per 1 hour session. She is willing to pay RTP a Fee. 

Currently Rye Recreation charges her $30.00 per similar exercise session.  

 

Otis suggests this agreement could be tried on a one year trial basis, Carvin concurred. Insurance certificate 

must be provided. Paul Noto will draft 1 year agreement.  

Motion by Salanitro to approve Mrs. Lee “a ford’s morning exercise program on a one year experimental basis; 

to be conducted Mondays, Wednesdays, and Fridays, at 9am to 11am at $30.00 per session subject to proof of 

liability insurance and proposal review by Town Attorney.  2nd Feinstein 

Roll Call: Pilla, Feinstein, Otis, Salanitro and Carvin. 

 

Salanitro asked if RTP has a Capital Budget.  Accountant suggested one could be developed as a rolling 5 year 

plan. Salanitro suggested possibility of developing a Capitol Reserve Fund. Carvin suggested Capitol planning be 

deferred until such time as architect, Lisa Easton would be available to participate. 

 

Carvin then suggested the Commission convene some Public Conversations  similar to ones that were recently 

held at Crawford Park. This would allow for Public input prior to committing to a Capital plan. 

 

Salanitro voiced concern that the proposed 2009 budget for Building & Grounds repair was too small.  

2007 actual for this line item was $105,000 and 2008 Actual was $76,000 and 2009 is proposed at $57,000.  

Otis also mentioned that the budget did not reflect any Tower/Roof repair money. Nowotnik indicated that for 

2009 we would begin drawing down the Grant money to pay for design work and material costs. The bulk of the 

Roof project cost would come in 2010. 

Feinstein raised the lack of a contingency amount in the budget and indicated concern that very often surprises 

occur and our budget would not be prepared for that.  Nowotnik reviewed the issue suggesting desires for 

strong cost controls dictated a flat budget.  He also mentioned that budget or not, emergencies related to safety 

or property protection would have to be dealt with. The drop from $76,000 to $57,000 was explained as we 

would not repeat the $21,000 Tree removal project done in 2008. 

Otis reminded everyone that RTP budget differs from the typical municipal Budget in that the City of Rye and the 

Town of Rye would be paying for any operational shortfall, at actual, after the budget year was finalized. 

Otis then requested Security costs be lowered below $70,000 for 2009 as he felt we overspent on Security 2008. 

 

Carvin then summarized budget review and suggested the Commission increase the Building and Grounds 

budget to $75,000 and to reduce Security budget down to $70,000 

 

Motion to accept the 2009 RTP operation budget showing projected revenue of $849,015 and Projected 

expenses of $943,179, which includes increasing the Building and Grounds budget to $75,000 and reducing the 



Security budget down to $70,000, with the resulting operating shortfall to be paid in by the Town of Rye and City 

of Rye as per predetermined formula. 

 

Motion: Salanitro – 2nd Feinstein   Roll Call:  Pilla, Feinstein, Otis, Salanitro and Carvin 

 

Park Manager Gioffre presented the revised Spring Startup process for the Park and the advertising of open 

positions.  Nowotnik reviewed the advertisements and confirmed placement in Westmore News, Journal News, 

and Sound and Town Report. Gioffre mentioned this year we are looking for an experienced Cashier Supervisor. 

 

Carvin asked to see more diversity turnover in Parks staff. Carvin wants more service oriented staff and asked 

that Ma agers e ore sele ti e ith this ear’s hiri g. 
Pilla asked how hiring decisions were made, Gioffre indicated that Supervisors participated in hiring process and 

all applicants were called and interviewed.  In the interest of time the balance of the a ager’s report would be 

presented at the next meeting. 

 

Carvin initiated discussion on the renewal of the Carpe Diem consulting agreement with Susan Auslander. He 

thanked her for securing a one year extension to the Federal Grant. He indicated a desire to restructure the 

assignment to be more appropriate to the Parks current needs. A meeting with Auslander, Carvin and Otis would 

be scheduled in the near future. 

 

Pilla questioned how the grant payments would work. Auslander indicated payments would be on a 

reimbursement method and initially the Park would have to pay from their Capital Fund. Otis indicated the Town 

would have to Bond the project and suggested that the Town request some of the Stimulus money to fund the 

project as it would be shovel-ready.  Salanitro volunteered to help get documents together Otis, Auslander and 

Carvin would cooperate to file for the Stimulus Grant. 

 

Fred Gioffre then reviewed the members of the Centennial Committee. They are working to have a Day of 

Celebration  called Rye Town Park Day . The committee will also have a schedule of other events. July 18th  

(Rain date 7/19) Gioffre will e-mail Committee minutes to the Commission to keep than informed.  

 

Under Old Business, Nowotnik indicated that the roofing contractor has backed away from tarping the roofs. We 

were dealing with the son. The father (and owner of the business) indicated the son (who we were dealing with) 

had overstepped his authority and miss-judged the extent of the work. He withdrew his offer. 

Lisa Easton had indicated that there did not seem to be any point in tarping the roofs for the 4-5 months 

remaining until the actual project began. She felt there might be a likelihood of more damage with the Tarps 

than without at this point. 

 

Feinstein asked about inconsistencies related to Audit footnotes related to Vac/Sick benefits. Nowotnik 

confirmed footnote was misstated and should have reflected Seasonal  Staff applications. Also, incorrect was 

the footnote citing a Collective Bargaining agreement as the Town has none. 

 

Carvin reviewed 2008 Bonuses paid to Seasonal staff and described the incentive aspect. Otis indicated the 

decision of awarding bonuses should have come before the Commission.  Nowotnik will review legality of 

Bonuses with Attorney Noto. 

 

Next meeting was agreed by consensus to be April 21st. 

Motion to adjourn: Salanitro – 2nd Otis,     Roll Call:  Pilla, Feinstein, Otis, Salanitro and Carvin 



RYE TOWN PARK COMMISSION MEETING 4/21/09 

-Present: Salanitro, McKean, Pilla, Feinstein and Carvin 

-Absent:  Otis 

 

-Motion to approve meeting minutes of 3/19/2009 made by Salanitro / Approved: 5-0 

 

-Feinstein asked to have Investment Policy discussion added to a future agenda. 

 

-Nowotnik reviewed revised point of Sale Cashier system FRP. Only one qualified bid was received: IUG 

Business Solution. They bid on both a 5 unit solution (the minimum needed to operate) and a 6 unit solution 

which would provide a Hot-swappable backup as well as an ability to add a second parking machine when 

warranted. 

 

It was suggested to change payment terms to better protect the Commission. Nowotnik will obtain contract 

form and Town Attorney to review contract.  

Motion to approve funding the 6 Unit solution subject to a suitable contract to be approved by the 

Commission was made by Feinstein.  Approved 5-0 

 

Fred Gioffre presented his report on preparations for Season Opening. This includes everything from cleaning 

out Gardens, Painting Trash cans, Repairing life guard boats, etc. He also indicated this year we will trial a Park 

wide Recycling program for Cans & Bottles.  He then laid out the hiring process for the beach. We expect to 

have at least 66 positions (same as last year) and perhaps a few more to improve parking control. 

 

Preseason: Parking charges will be implemented beginning 5/10, 5/11/09 weekend. Opening day is Friday 

5/22/09. An employee orientation will be scheduled for earlier that week. Shirts and hats have been ordered 

and all will be required to wear them.  As a result of the new system, all cashiers will receive training specific 

to their tasks. A new cashier supervisor will be hired this year to improve supervision in this area. 

 

As to Cultural events:  5 Concerts in the Park  have been scheduled. Costs will be split with the FORTP.  

A juried art show Art in the Park  is planned for May 16th and 17th. 

 

Bill and Fred touched on the 2009 Centennial Celebration Committee. They agreed to prepare a calendar for a 

Season of Celebration  July 18th will have a specific Rye Town Park Day  full of historic Activities, Clowns, 

Storytellers, Games, etc.  Community service programs at the various Schools could yield volunteers. Minutes 

of the Celebration Committees will be emailed to the Commission. 

 

Seaside Johnnies issues were brought up by Carvin and suggested a meeting with John Ambrose, Fred Gioffre, 

Paul Noto and Bishop Nowotnik to review and resolve as many as possible. (5/13/2009 meeting report 

attached) 

 

Carvin asked to have a written Park Maintenance schedule produced that could be shared with all concerned. 

Frank Deleo will pull this together. Carvin also suggested a series of Community Conversations related to the 

Park & Beach to allow public participation in Future Planning. 

 



Carvin will meet with this year’s seasonal employees during their orientation. He asked that hiring be aimed at 

raising the levels of services of all employees. He also asked to improve the level of diversity at the employee 

level. Nowotnik reviewed last year’s Carver Center program where 4 interns came to work for the Town but 

were paid through Grant Funds obtained by Carver Center. We hope to participate again this year. Fred 

Gioffre also indicated he hoped to get a few students from the upcoming Job Fair sponsored by the Port 

Chester/Rye Brook Chamber of Commerce and the Port Chester High School. 

 

Nowotnik introduced Rena Kasyup, Director of the Clay Art Center and Sarah Coble, a Mixed Media Artist. 

They wish to pursue a Municipal Challenge Grant   to provide funding for the production of public art for Rye 

Town Park and are asking The Rye Town Park Commission to commit to matching funds if they are successful 

 

Sarah Coble then presented pictures of her idea to install Artistic Tile Montages on the large park walls along 

the Admin building. This ceramic mural could grow year by year as more people participate. They would also 

consider having on-site Family workshops and involve children as well.  

Motion made by Salanitro, to approve up to $1500 Rye Town Park matching funds contribution to this 

program, subject to the Clay Art Center actually getting the Arts Council grant. 

Approved 5-0 

 

Carvin asked that a comprehensive Calendar be developed for current Rye Town Park season and put on the 

Town Website. 

 

Lisa Easton then updated the Commission on the status of the Renovation drawings for the bathhouse. Over 

the next few weeks the engineers will tour the building along with a wood scientist and she expects plans to 

be completed by mid July for submission to the State. 

 

Lisa Easton indicated that a more accurate budget for the project would be available by the end of June or 

early July. Carvin said the Commission would need ample notice of that budget as there were specific 

protocols required for the implementation of a Capital Bond to cover the expenses above the Grants we have 

received.  All agreed that 90 days would be the correct planning time frame for the Bonding process. 

 

No otnik indicated e had filed, through Nita Lo ey’s office, an application for Federal Stimulus Funds as our 

project could be Judged Shovel Ready . Our submission asked for $1,228,000 and used Susan Auslander’s 
project definition and scope which covered the Roofs renovation only.  We listed the entire project cost as Est. 

$10,000,000.00. 

 

Nowotnik brought up a 2nd Notice of Violation received from the City of Rye Building Department. The 

original notice was issued back in 2004. We will have more details for next meeting. 

 

Carvin highlighted that draft copies of the 2008 Rye To n Park Financials ere in e eryone’s packet. These ill 
Be reviewed and voted on at the next meeting. 

 

Special meeting was set up for Wednesday, 4/29 at 8:00am to vote on the Cashier System contract 

 

Motion to adjourn: 7:35pm Salanitro: 

McKean, Pilla, Feinstein, Salanitro, and Carvin 

 



Date: May 27, 2009 

Time: 7:00pm 

Attendance: Salanitro, McKean, Feinstein, Carvin and Pilla 

Feinstein led Pledge 

Motion by Feinstein, 2nd McKean, to go into executive session Re: Contract negotiations with Seaside 

Johnnies. 

7:25pm Commission resumed the Public meeting with No Action being taken.  

Otis, as he excused himself for another meeting, made a recommendation for the Commission to consider 

approving a roofs only  project to protect the buildings from further deterioration. 

Carvin introduced Lisa Easton to make a presentation regarding the Renovations and asked her to focus on 

the Capital needs of the project. 

Easton then presented a series of current photos showing how areas of the buildings have deteriorated 

since the initial survey photos of 2003. The photos were matched up by area and clearly showed 

significant additional damage done to Roofs, Parapets and Walls. 

 Lisa’s photos showed that the majority of the original Spruce Roof rafters and joists appear to be in very 

good condition. This will have to be confirmed by a wood scientist who will do test borings and inspect for 

evidence of weakness, deterioration, or dry rot. She pointed out that much of the visible damage has not 

affected structural elements of the Roof. 

Lisa Easton suggested the Commission consider spending money to repair the Tiled areas of the project to 

historic standards. Because of the extensive structural weakness she suggested the Flat Roofed areas be 

simply rehabbed with new Roofing membrane to stop the water leakage, allow the walls to dry out and 

then evaluate future action. In her opinion there is too much water penetrating this area to evaluate the 

strength of the supporting walls. Her opinion is the Parapet walls may not be sound. 

Salanitro asked if it would be better to take down the rear sections of the building and rebuild them to 

match the height of the front section, thereby getting newer and safer construction, while at the same 

time generating more usable square footage. Lisa said this option was a very viable one. 

Pilla asked to review life safety issues related to conditions currently existing. Lisa indicated her concern 

was that loose tile and compromised stucco sections could break loose, fall and possibly injure someone. 

She also mentioned the deteriorated Flat Roof sections presented dangers if employees were to walk on 

them as they could fall through weaker portions. Lisa also i di ated o er  a out the Me ’s a d Ladies 
room access tunnels. Her opinion was that they presented risks to those people accessing the bathroom 

facilities. She felt the Tunnels may need shoring up to make them safe to use. 



Pilla then brought up the possibility that, based on the 18 months left in the Grant period, there may be 

enough time to try and RFP the entire project to a private third party developer. He pointed out that long 

term lease potential existed, as much as 37 ½ years in the case of a recent Glen Island Project completed 

by Westchester County. This period would allow for a private enterprise to amortize the development cost 

and still make a profit. 

Lisa Easton commented that it was important to make the building water tight, to make it more attractive 

to potential investors. In its current state the building could seem too risky. She pointed out that with a 

repaired shell, a 37 ½ lease and the 20% Historic Preservation Tax credit a project like this could qualify 

for, it could easily be seen by developers as viable. 

Pilla cited a concern about the parking capacity of the Park if an active use is found for the Administrative 

Building. Parking capacity is currently an issue even without the building being used extensively. 

Carvin asked about the Construction timing. Lisa indicated Construction documents would be completed 

end of July. Bidding and Award could be at the end of August and Construction would begin right after 

Labor Day.   Construction would take about 6 months.  She indicated that Roofers could work through the 

Winter with good weather.  Salanitro asked for confirmation that we could pre-order tile to save time at 

the back end of the project. Lisa concurred. 

Lisa then pointed out that the Landmark Designation covered the entire Park and the Beach, all 60 plus 

acres and the buildings on it. McKean suggested strongly that we develop an RFP for Grant writing 

services. Pilla suggested we get a copy of the RFP for the Westchester County Glen Island Public/Private 

development to use as a model for our prioject. 

Feinstein asked how the project could be paid for.  Carvin indicated that the Town of Rye would probably 

bond for the project along with the City of Rye which would be responsible for roughly 50% of any capital 

improvement cost. 

Fred Gioffre then updated the Commission on the opening weekend results and the installation and the 

operation of the new cashier system.  This year’s Me orial weeke d ope i g had good weather a d great 

crowds.  We booked $61,600.00 for the 4 days (5/22 thru 5/25.  Although the Cashier system still has 

some glitches, it appears to be working and we are preparing new operating rules for the Cashiers.  They 

are slower than expected and the contractor is working on the issue. 

Motion to Adjourn: Feinstein, 2nd McKean: 

 

 



Rye Town Park Commission meeting 7/21/2009 
 
Salanitro, Feinstein, Otis, Cunningham, Pilla, Carvin 
 
Feinstein led pledge 
 
Otis introduced Mack Cunningham as the designated City of Rye representative on the Rye 
Town Park Commission.  He replaces Douglas McKean who resigned for personal reasons after 
serving two separate terms as a Commissioner.  Carvin, Otis and the entire Commission thanked 
McKean for his service and welcomed Cunningham to the Rye Town Park Commission. 
 
Approval of minutes 
Motion; Feinstein, 2nd; Otis 
 
Fred Gioffre presented the Park Manager's Report showing the 2009 YTD comparison of Park 
operations to 2008 as of July, 2009.  He highlighted that permit sales were down due to two 
factors.  The first is that the implementation of the new cashiering system required that all 
permits be reissued and that we did not have a mail in option this year.  The second reason was 
the extremely rainy month of June which kept attendance down and beaches closed for several 
days. Overall, the YTD numbers were down $62,800 from 2008, primarily due to the rainy June. 
Carvin asked for more clarity in the reported information. 
 
Gioffre then highlighted that the new cashiering system was operating as planned.  Also, any 
cash-to-system variances were being analyzed at the register level on a daily basis. 
 
He then mentioned that there seems to be a pick up in attendance during July as the beach or 
parking lots have been temporarily closed down at least five times due to over capacity issues.  
The closings were for relatively short periods of 1 to 2 hours.  This only happened once in 2008. 
Car parking has been adjusted to be more organized with the hiring of a new Parking Supervisor 
and added staff.   
 
Carvin and Otis commended the staff on their improved control over parking and how that 
efficiency contributed to a more profitable operation as well as a safer operation for the visitors 
to the park.  Both commented on the need to balance car parking with the needs of the visitors as 
many people come to the park for the open space and not the beach.  Otis mentioned that no cars 
should be parked to the south side of the main path through the park.  This would keep the areas 
adjacent to the beach totally clear for people. 
 
Pilla then asked if parking rates could be changed mid-season to increase the differentiation 
between residents and non-residents.  Otis indicated his concern that the validation process 
would take more time and back up traffic to the point of creating serious safety issues.  Feinstein 
asked that we try to obtain better data as to the mix of resident vs. non-resident as the Town and 
the City of Rye residents have been subsidizing park operations deficits.  Gioffre agreed to 
perform some random tabulation to get a better feel for the mix. 
 
2100 total permits issued as of 7/16/2009, 8 non-res family, 90 non-res seniors, 12 non-res Single 



 
Otis commented on the apparent lack of impact due to our parking fees being substantially 
higher than Playland this year.  Feinstein attributed this to the economy and the fact that people 
are staying closer to home.  Gioffre concurred, indicating word is getting out that Rye Town Park 
is one of the cleanest beaches in the area.  He also mentioned that there were more people using 
the fields to picnic and sun.  Carvin questioned if those people were simply avoiding the beach 
fees.  Gioffre confirmed that very often these people were waiting for the cashier booths to close 
later in the day so they could get on the beach without paying a fee. 
 
Feinstein highlighted the July 2009 revenue being much higher than the previous July, and 
indicated that this year's more detailed reporting of daily revenue, days of the week and weather 
conditions, would be very helpful for the Commission as they deliberate on fees and budgets 
going forward.  Carvin requested the format of the report be condensed and simplified to make it 
easier to compare various categories. 
 
Cunningham asked to implement the test tracking of residents and non-residents by zip code, at 
the beach entrances as early as the upcoming weekend.  Carvin again voiced concern that 
residents were subsidizing non-residents attendance.  Otis reminded everyone that there already 
exist a differential in Parking, Beach access and Permits relating to non-residents. 
 
Gioffre reviewed, anti-bird netting installed in pavilions, Towers were cleaned and disinfected, 
computers installed tightened up cash control, Publicity has improved greatly, Rye Town Park 
Day, Art in the Park, tree planting, and overall more positive stories in the newspapers 
throughout the county. 
 
Carvin congratulated the staff for a great Rye Town Park Day and a good season.  This was 
echoed by the entire Commission. 
 
A brief review of the financials to-date showed that as of the end of June, the overall park 
operations were about $78,000 behind the budget plan, primarily because of the rainy June 
weather.  Otis asked about the equipment line item.  Nowotnik indicated that the cashier system 
has not yet been capitalized.  Otis also commented that the situation of being financially behind 
would necessitate extra care in added expenses towards the end of the season.  The accountant 
will review the options related to capitalizing these expenses. 
 
Lisa Easton then presented her Engineering, Architectural, and Wood Scientist inspection results.  
She presented photos and schedules that related to the roofs.  She indicated that the situation was 
not as dire as feared.  She reviewed each section of roof in detail, identifying areas to be worked 
on and areas that were to remain.  The flat roof sections appeared to be the worst and at the 
minimum needed to be stabilized.  They are not tile, but, sheathing covered with layers of 
roofing.  She suggested that these 4 roof sections be re-roofed and the parapets be cut down and 
capped.  This would be a temporary measure to protect the buildings beneath and could be 
revisited at a later date. 
 



She indicated that the bid documents would be segregated into Priority order so the Commission 
would then be able to decide as to how much and where money would be spent to complete the 
roof project.   
 
Carvin asked how additional grant money could be obtained.  Easton replied that the State and 
Federal money would have to “Closed Out” before a new grant cycle could be applied for.  She 
also felt that additional grant money could be obtained once the current project was completed. 
 
Pilla indicated he had obtained two RFP’s for recent Public/Private Partnership projects at Glen 
Island and Playland.  He offered to share them with the Commission. 
 
Comments from the Public: 
John Flick and Dr. Michael Selden?: both members of the Board of Managers of Waters Edge. 
He reviewed issues with trucks unloading for events at the Pavilions the prior week.  Two trucks 
were parked in the fire safety zone which was blocking the emergency entrance to Waters Edge. 
He suggested that there should be a specific loading zone for these types of delivery and at no 
time should trucks or cars be parked in this zone. 
That Sunday, traffic backed up to the end of Dearborn and presented a safety hazard.  He also 
mentioned that various safety issues related to excess cars, signs, vending carts, etc. that would 
also hinder fire or emergency vehicles getting into and around the Park.  He also mentioned that 
there was no control of parking for those nights when volleyball was held and there should be 
more staff during those evenings to better control cars and people. 
He offered to work with the Park Management to implement better safety controls.  Carvin 
welcomed this suggestion and asked that Flick meet with Mr. Gioffre and Mr. Lawyer to 
improve the Park’s safety profile. 
Flick also mentioned that the City of Rye would be posting new signs on the safety zone.  He 
also lodged a complaint about the typical loud music during many of the pavilion parties and 
asked for more control. 
 
Mr. Rasmussen presented some photos about various areas in the park that the FORTP felt 
needed more maintenance attention.  He also suggested the Commission consider selling permits 
and daily access tickets offsite similar to Greenwich, as a way of alleviating crowding.  Currently 
Greenwich charges $20.00 for daily non-resident parking. 
 
Carvin asked to have a maintenance plan for RTP that could be shared with the FORTP. 
 
Nanette Silverman then asked for permission to sell various novelties during the fireworks for 
charitable purposes to benefit the Children’s Center at the Westchester County Medical Center.  
She mentioned that Seaside Johnnies was competing against them and they were not doing well.  
She also mentioned there was a donation made to the Town in addition to the fundraising aspect. 
Otis mentioned that there were some contractual issues that related to this issue.  The Town 
could not have uncontrolled vendor sales.  He asked that the Commission review this issue and 
get back to her once a decision was made. 
 
Otis asked to defer the review of the 2008 financials until a future meeting. 



Nowotnik indicated that an outline was distributed to each Commission member covering 
historic renovations guidelines.  Also distributed was a Grant Writing proposal for Commission 
review. 
Nowotnik then presented a proposal to review parking and traffic flow at Rye Town Park by PSC 
Engineering.  This proposal was fielded as a part of a larger scope Town of Rye project including 
Crawford Park and the 10 Pearl street parking lot.  The share applicable to Rye Town Park would 
be $6800, $4880 for Crawford Park, and $3540 for 10 Pearl Street lot.  Carvin asked to review 
the scope.  Otis asked to get additional input from other bidders and suggested this be deferred to 
next year. 
 
Otis suggested email polling for next meeting date 
 
Motion to adjourn: Salanitro, 2nd Pilla 
 
 
 
 



 1 

Rye Town Park Commission Meeting 9/30/09 

Present: Otis, Feinstein, Salanitro, Cunningham and Carvin Salanitro 

Absent: Pilla,  

Cunningham led the Pledge of Allegiance  

Carvin asked for approval of the minutes from the prior meeting:  Cunningham asked that the pages be 

numbered in the future and also asked to correct the name of a Public Commenter to: (Jim Flick) on 

 Pg. 2, Paragraph 6.  Otis and Cunningham then asked to reflect their questions about the Cashier system 

expenses shown in the equipment line.  "Why were we not capitalizing the expenses of that system."  

Nowotnik indicated the minutes would be corrected to reflect that discussion. 

Cunningham motioned to approve the minutes as amended: 2nd by Otis,  

Ayes:  Feinstein, Cunningham, Otis, Salanitro Carvin. 

Park Report: Fred Gioffre reported RTP had a good year despite the bad weather and gives credit to RTP 

Staff.  

Bill Lawyer; who produced many press releases to all the local papers helped increase park attendance. 

Terry Fanelli; Cashier Supervisor. Last year’s overage was $320.000, brought down to $26.000 for 

expense of repairing computers and for break in at North Beach. 

Frank Deleo; who oversaw many projects done in house instead of using outside sources. 

Nathan Kappus: Helped restructure the Parking Plan, alleviating mid day traffic, keeping cars off of tree 

roots and paths.  In 2009 he started back-filling spaces as people began leaving. 

Joe Suppa; who doubled as Security Chief and Head Cashier 

 

In spite of having to close the park down, as advised by the Lifeguard Captain Mark Cassata, 3 times due 

to over capacity.  Compared to 2008, the 2009 Season started $88.000 behind in June due to excessive 

rain.  Revenues improved for July, Aug and Sept.  YTD in Sept shows a YTD increase of $72,776 over 

2008. 

Some areas that had an expense increase for 2009;  we hired more lifeguards, capital plan for Easton 

Architecture for roof renovations, etc.  It should be noted that the capital plan calls for nearly $8 million 

of park reconstruction.  This deferred maintenance has increased our workload and costs along with 

added emergency work in both the Showers and the tunnel areas.  

 

Carvin then asked to review the YTD operating results for the season.  Nowotnik indicated the current 

report included September 2009 actual, but, still needed review for accruals and adjustments. 

 

Terenzi mentioned that the soft costs related to Easton Architects work could be moved out as a 

deferred capital charge which we expect to recoup from the existing grants monies.  Cash flow would 

not be impacted and the current loss projection would be reduced by a similar amount. 

 

Carvin then asked to review a few more numbers: 



 2 

Directors Line:  This is the compensation for Gioffre & Lawyer, it is under budget due to normal payroll 

lag.  This line will come in on budget. 

 

Groundsmen:  Why is this line over budget by $15,000?  Frank DeLeo responded by reviewing some of 

the extra projects  completed by his in-house staff, thereby saving money in the maintenance line but 

increasing the compensation line.  Projects included installing Anti Bird Netting on both Pavilions, 

repairing the flat roof sections on the main bathroom building, myriad concrete repairs throughout the 

park, cleaning the towers of pigeons and guano, etc.  Cunningham indicated his support for the in-

housing of his work as it would be much less expensive than contracting out.  He suggested the Park 

staff develop a priority list of projects for the 2010 season and budget.  Carvin concurred and asked that 

this plan be ready before yearend. 

 

Carvin indicated revenues appeared to be about $70K over 2008 revenues, in a year that had absolutely 

horrific weather and asked if the staff had any information as to how well PlayLand fared this year.  

Gioffre volunteered that in his conversations with Playland staff, they indicated they were down over 

$10 million.  Fienstein reminded everyone that the cost of visiting Playland was much higher than 

coming to the beach at Rye Town Park. 

 

Carvin congratulated the Park staff on their great work increasing revenues and indicated the new 

cashier system was obviously paying its way.  In 2008, the park could only account for about 25% of the 

revenue actually collected.  This year we appear to have accounted for 97% of the total revenues 

collected.  This can be directly attributed to the new system as well as Terry Fanelli, the new Cashier 

Supervisor.  Terry applied her prior banking experience and developed and implemented new cash 

handling procedures and retrained the cashier staff. 

 

Fred Gioffre attributed the good financial season as due to: 

1. There was much greater intensity of use. 

2. Revising of the Seaside Johnnies parking vouchers 

3.   General economic forces led to more people staying closer to home; e.g. Stay-Cation 

4. Improved overall management and control  

 

Otis thanked the staff for the written Park Report which he felt was detailed and clear 

Cunningham commented on the Utilities line in the Budget was based on the information available at 

the time from Con Edison and the NY State Power Authority last year; the budget was never reset when 

the increases came in less than projected.  He suggested a three budget plan be developed and 

implemented. 

 

Carvin again thanked Mr. Gioffre for the hard work and great results for this season.  Mr. Gioffre 

indicated it was the result of a team effort on the part of his staff.  Spontaneous applause from the 

Commissioners and the audience. 

 



 3 

Bill Lawyer then reviewed the revenue numbers more specifically.  We had 8.7 inches above normal 

rainfall and averaged 4 degrees below normal temperatures.  Although we had more rainy days, when it 

did not rain, people came in large numbers.  Bill also pointed out there were more programs this season 

and also there was much more promotion by the Park and Seaside Johnnies which improved 

attendance. 

 

Bill pointed out that his experience showed that typical labor costs were 70% in non-profit service 

operations and that at Rye Town Park those costs were closer to 50%Bill also highlighted the improved 

service that was provided by park staff.  Visitors were made to feel welcome at the Park and all staff 

were trained to smile and be helpful. 

 

Cunningham mentioned that the labor costs ratio was nearly 60% when benefits were accounted.  

Carvin asked the 2010 budget recast the expenses into their proper broad categories so these groups of 

costs could be more accurately measured and projected. 

 

Lawyer then presented a 2010 marketing plan based on the 2009 program for inclusion in the 2010 

budget.  Fienstein commented that the Rye Town Park website has been down for more than 24 hours. 

Carvin then asked the staff to pay particular attention to the remaining three months as related to 

continuing expenses and security costs. 

 

Fienstein brought up the zip code tacking information given to the Board.  She commented that it 

showed a predominant non-resident attendance and she reminded the Commissioners this information 

should be considered when setting fees for the 2010 season.  She also indicated that Town residents 

were subsidizing any operating losses and the Commission should try to minimize this impact on our 

resident taxpayers. 

 

Carvin confirmed his desire to increase the non-resident fee differential.  He suggested approaches and 

options be developed by staff to effect such a plan for 2010.  He also suggested a committee be 

appointed to participate in the 2010 budget planning. 

 

Lawyer then presented a proposal for pruning trees throughout the park.  He explained his survey which 

included 39 trees needing pruning and one dead tree needing removal.  He then reviewed the 2008 tree 

removal program.  He explained how he obtained  the three bids for this work. 

 1.  Bartlett Tree Service  $8524.00 

 2.  Central tree Service  $8698.00 

 3.  Zicca Landscaping  $9750.00 

Lawyer recommended the Commission award the job to the low bidder, Bartlett Tree Service.  Salanitro 

then asked if the project was budgeted.  Nowotnik responded the Grounds Maintenance line was 

already over budget by more than $20,000.00.  Cunningham asked when the work would be scheduled.  

Lawyer indicated, if approved, the project would start within two weeks and take about three work days 

to complete. 



 4 

Salanitro made a motion to award the tree pruning contract to Bartlett Tree Service for the amount of 

$8524.00.  2nd by Fienstein 

Ayes:  Otis, Cunningham, Salanitro, Fienstein, Carvin 

 

Lawyer confirmed that any wood chips resulting from this work would be spread within the park as this 

recycling of chips was a healthy program for the trees and the park. 

 

Nowotnik then highlighted correspondence from the NY State Office of Preservation and Parks regarding 

their approval of the roof replacement construction documents presented by Easton Architects.  The 

plans are presently still being reviewed by the National Treasures Grant staff at the Federal level.  This 

review could take a few more to complete, however, few if any problems are anticipated. 

 

Nowotnik also pointed out the NYS people wanted to tour the project and park.  The tour will take place 

at 10:00AM on 10/20/2009, and is expected to last about one hour.  Otis mentioned that Public Notice 

would be required if there was any chance of a quorum.  Nowotnik will Notice the Meeting. 

 

Nowotnik then reviewed the capital plan for the Park beginning with the roofs replacement project at 

$1,264,000.  He asked the Commissioners to review the plan and provide input.  Carvin suggested a sub-

committee be formed to help refine the 5 year capital plan, and develop a strategy to effect a 

Public/Private Partnership.  The committee consists of:  Carvin, Salanitro, Otis, Cunningham 

 

Cunningham opined that any dialog regarding development should take into account the long range 

impact of revenue and the increased traffic to the park.  Fienstein brought up the proposed Children's 

Museum at Playland and suggested the committee consider finding symbiotic uses for the facility at Rye 

Town Park.  Otis went on to say there is a need for the staff of the Town of Rye to sit with the City of Rye 

staff to review the current laws related to the bonding and funding of capital projects at Re Town Park. 

 

Lawyer then presented a "Gates" replacement project being finalized by the FORTP.  They have a grant 

of $15,000.00 and wish to replace all of the chain link gates and fencing along the beach with wrought 

iron gates matching the existing wrought iron fencing throughout the Park.  The cost of this project has 

come in at $17,020 and includes replacing all of the chain link fencing at the north gate down to Seaside 

Johnnies.  The South gate entrance is also included. 

He asked the Commission to approve the $2020.00 that was over the FORTP grant amount so that the 

entire project could be completed as envisioned. 

 

Otis asked if there could be an estimate for the replacement of the temporary wire fence surrounding 

the duck pond.  He also asked if the FORTP would consider contributing their own money, above the 

New York State grant amount.  Bill Lawyer said he would check this with the FORTP.  He also replied that 

the Duck Pond fencing was not on the FORTP radar as a project.  Otis then mentioned the chain link 

fences were not as durable as the wrought iron nor were they as good looking. 

 



 5 

There was some concern raised by Salanitro that there were no clear specifications prepared for the 

bids.  He was concerned that although the bid indication was "to match the existing", there were too 

many areas that quality could vary.  Salanitro suggested specific and detailed specifications be obtained 

for the existing fencing and gates, to be used to re-bid the job.  Salanitro will pass on to Lawyer some 

wrought iron fencing specifications. 

 

Otis made motion to approve the award of $2020.00 for the extra fencing project, contingent on the 

additional amount being required, and the contractor complying with the fencing specifications 

provided by Commissioner Salanitro.  2nd by Salanitro 

Ayes:  Otis, Cunningham, Salanitro, Fienstein, Carvin 

 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

Carolyn Walker - Rye Beach Avenue, Rye NY 

She is pleased to hear so many wonderful things being addressed in Rye Town Park.  While she 

appreciates the various comments related to safety she wanted to share her concerns with the 

Commission.  Parking in the Park is Dangerous.  There are too many cars and they are not controlled 

well enough to provide safety. 

 

Carvin agreed there was still room for improvement in the handling of cars In the afternoon as people 

begin to leave the park.  Cunningham also agreed and added that there needs to be better and cleaner 

delineation of walking areas and parking areas.  Otis suggested that Security staff could do a better job 

of controlling vehicle access to the park.  Parking areas need to be more tightly controlled. 

 

Cunningham brought up the issue of Seaside Johnnies' staff using their electric carts on the pedestrian 

walkway.  He asked Mr. Gioffre to speak with John Ambrose about this as it presents us with a 

substantial risk.  Gioffre agreed. 

 

Carvin then asked for an executive session to discuss a personnel and staffing issue. 

Motion: Cunningham, 2nd: Fienstein 

 

Meeting was adjourned at 8:05PM after Commission completed executive session without taking any 

action. 

 

 

 

 



      Rye Town Park 
    95 Dearborn Ave. 

     Rye, NY   10580 
     914 967-0965 

 
 
RYE TOWN PARK COMMISSION 
 
 
PRESIDENT 
JosephCarvin  
Supervisor-Town of Rye 
 
 
COMMISSIONERS 
Steve Otis 
Mayor – Rye City 
 
Dennis Pilla 
Mayor – Port Chester 
 
Joan Feinstein 
Mayor – Rye Brook 
 
Benedict Salanitro PE 
Rye Neck 
 
Mack Cunningham 
City of Rye 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        April 4, 2016 
 
 

REVISED NOTIFICATION 

RYE TOWN PARK COMMISSION 

MEETING(S) 
Day: Tuesday: October 20, 2009 

 

Meeting #1 - - Time: 10:00A.M   
 Place:  Rye Town Park Administration Building 

   95 Dearborn Avenue 2
nd

 Floor, Rye, NY  10580

  

Agenda:  Facility Walk-Thru and Grant Update 

 

 

Meeting #2 - - Time: 6:00P.M   
 Place:  10 Pearl Street, Port Chester, NY 10573 

 

Agenda: 
 

1. Approval of the minutes of the 9/30/2009 Meeting 

2. Park Managers’ Report – Fred Gioffre/Bill Lawyer 

3. Approval of 2008 audited financial report 

4. Roof Renovations, Capital Plan & Bonding discussion 

5. New Business – Correspondence 

6. Old Business 

 
 

 



Rye Town Park Commission Special Meeting – 11/6/2009, 7:30AM 

 

Present:  Pilla, Feinstein, Salanitro, Cunningham, Otis, Carvin 

 

Carvin opened the meeting asking Otis to lead the Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Motion made by Otis (2nd by Feinstein) to award the roof replacement contract for the Rye Town Park 

Bathing Pavilion to L&M Roofing Inc., the lowest qualified bidder, in the amount of $1,335,858.90.  Said 

amount to include; Construction Contract of $1,313,654.00 and a Performance Bond and Labor and 

Material Payment Bond in the amount of $22,204.90. 

 

Cunningham indicated that we would be approving two contracts, one for the construction and another 

with Easton Architects to manage the project.  Nowotnik reminded him the Commission had already 

approved the Easton Architect agreement earlier in the year, prior to his coming on the board. 

 

Pilla questioned if there was a 30 day estoppel period required as this expense was to be bonded and 

typically would be subject to referendum challenge.  Otis answered that the applicable 1953 state 

statute is written to exempt this action from a permissive referendum by either the City of Rye or the 

Town of Rye. 

 

Roll Call:  AYE: Pilla, Feinstein, Salanitro, Cunningham, Otis, Carvin 

 

Otis wanted put in the record that this action was something that should have been done more than 25 

years ago, and that this Commission deserves a lot of credit for approving this project.  He went to say 

that this was a really big deal as this roof project would literally save this building  and the Commission 

should be very proud to have voted to do so. 

 

Carvin thanked Otis for his insight, advice and guidance during this effort, noting the Otis had the 

longest tenure and most experience on the Commission relating to this project.   

Discussion ensued relating to the bonding period with Pilla questioning how long the bond would be for.  

Nowotnik indicated the bonding agency was offering 10 – 15 years.  Otis replied that each municipality 

would be bonding their portion separately.  Carvin indicated a strong desire to go with a 15 year bond. 

 

Cunningham raised the issue of the need to establish a Capital Fund account to manage the flow of the 

funds during the life of the project.  He made a motion to establish General Ledger Account code in the 

budget labeled, Capital Fund to be used for such purpose.  2nd by Feinstein. 

 

Roll Call:  AYE: Pilla, Feinstein, Salanitro, Cunningham, Otis, Carvin 

 

Feinstein then asked where and when we would begin the budget process for 2010.  Carvin indicated 

there were several issues related to the Ad Hoc Parking Committee that needed to be resolved before 

the budget discussions begin.  He indicated the February would be appropriate.   



Pilla asked if there were some staffing metric that could be calculated to tie into the number of 

cars/people needed per thousand visitors.  Carvin was confident that with the data collected by the new 

cashier system, various metrics could be developed and be in the hands of the Commission well in time 

for the February meeting.   

Carvin then went on to mention the need to continue improving the monitoring of Park operations, and 

improving our security and parking staffs.   

 

Motion to adjourn:  Otis, 2nd Feinstein 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	Rye Town Park
	Rye, NY   10580


